	Question #
	Section
	Sub-Section
	Questions
	Answers

	1
	B
	B.1
	The CLIN 0001 table contains 450,000 hours for the Base Year and each Option Year. Are the 450,000 hours for all contractors awarded the IDIQ as opposed to one contractor? Please clarify.
	The USPTO anticipates awarding multiple Labor Hour contracts. Indefinite Delivery Indefinite Quantity (IDIQ) contracts will not be awarded.  It s anticipated that up to 450,000 hours will be ordered among all contractors. 450,000 hours will not be ordered from one contractor alone. 

	2
	B
	B.1 and B.2
	Should the Offeror assume the annual hours provided in the CLIN tables are not to exceed hours?
	Yes.

	3
	B
	B.1, B.2, M.3.3 and M.4
	Since the scope of work provided in the RFP is broad, bidder’s total price calculation in the CLIN tables will likely include varying assumptions.  Will the total CLIN price be included in the fair and reasonable evaluation?  Please provide more explanation on how price will be evaluated?
	A price analysis will performed in accordance with Section M.3.3 “Evaluation of price proposal”.  Offerors are not required to provide total CLIN prices, only the hourly rates as per the matrix in Section B.


	4
	B
	B.1, B.2 and L.9.2.2.1 (d.)
	CLIN tables:

The price instructions state that “The offeror shall provide a cost element breakdown by CLIN as identified in Section B.1 by year and a grand total rollup summary”. Can the offeror add a total price column and row to the CLIN table to provide the total rollup by year and by CLIN?
	USPTO is asking your company to provide a separate spreadsheet that shows a summary of all CLINS. L.9.2.2.1 has been revised. 

	5
	B
	B.4
	A: 

The Government has indicated that two types of task orders will be issued under the IDIQ – discrete task orders and level-of effort. Can the Government please provide the definition of a discrete task order?
	As stated in Sections B.4.2 and G.9; discrete task orders are task orders that are for development efforts and must have a baselined project plan and activity descriptions.  The period of performance for discrete task orders can be defined before the task starts.

	6
	B
	B.1, B.2, L.9.2.2.1.d
	In the RFP instructions in paragraph L.9.2.2.1.d, it says that, “The offeror shall provide a cost element breakdown by CLIN as identified in Section B.1 by year and a grand total rollup summary.”  

Question: This statement can be interpreted to mean that offerors do not need to allocate hours and totals for the optional CLINs 0002A, B, and C.  Is this a correct interpretation? If not, can the Government provide an overview of the work scope expected?
	See revised RFP and answer to Question #4.  Paragraph L.9.2.2.1.d has been deleted.


	Question #
	Section
	Sub-Section
	Questions
	Answers

	7
	C
	N/A
	Deliverables Templates: 

Will USPTO provide templates for all deliverables discussed in Section C,  including CPARS (pg.19) and cross reference all deliverables mentioned in Section C in Section F.6?
	1) Templates for all contract deliverables are in section J.

2) CPARS is a database that the USPTO completes, not the contractor.

	8
	C
	C.2
	C.2 Place of Performance: 
Are there any restrictions on the location of the contractor's facility?  For example does USPTO require the contractor's facility to be within 30 miles of USPTO HQs?
	There are no restrictions on the location of the contractor’s facility. 

	9
	C
	C.10
	C.1 0 Performance Standards: 
The information on SDLC is made available for electronic review via the World Wide Web Access in the SDIT Project Library under the “Solicitation Documents”  at the following link:  (http://www.uspto.gov/about/vendor_info/current_acquisitions/sdi_ng/sdinghom.jsp)
	This document is now posted on the website. 

	10
	C
	C.12.2.5 and C.12.2.13
	…posted in the USPTO SDIT project library: 

This bidder could not locate the referenced document at Project Library?  Are the documents posted yet?  If not, what is the planned posting schedule?
	See response to Question #9.

	11
	C
	C.12.2.5 and C.12.2.13
	System and Software Development Activities: 

Should this section be labeled C.12.4?
	See amended RFP for correction.

	12
	C
	C.12
	Section headings are duplicated: 

The numbering for C.12 should be C.12.4 and the rest of the section numbering revised.
	Amendments will be posted. The rest of the section numbering does not need to be revised. 

	13
	C
	C.12.2.8, C13.5 and G10
	(C.12.2.8) Earned Value Management Reporting shall be required on all tasks that are discreet and exceed $1,000,000.00....

(C.13.5)  The contractor shall use EVM for all the tasks greater than $1,000,000.00 unless specified...

(G 10 (a) 1 Earned Value Management (EVM) shall be applicable to discrete task orders that execeed $1,000,000.00 and exceed 90 days to complete.

There is conflicting language about when EVMS is applied. Will USPTO please clarify?
	Thank you for your comments, this will be amended. 

	14
	C
	C.11.1 (p 12)
	Does the Government require a Transition Plan as part of our response to the RFP? If so, please provide guidance on where the Transition Plan should be included.
	As stated in Section C.11.1, the USPTO is asking for a transition at the Task Order Level. The Transition Plan does not have to be submitted with the proposal. 

	15
	C
	C.10.1
	This section references the SDLC that is available at the USPTO acquisition SDIT Project Library web page. However, the only documents posted to the “Solicitation Documents” include the Synopsis [.doc], the RFP [.doc], and the Questions & Answers [.doc].
	See response to Question #9.

	16
	C
	C.12.9.1
	Paragraph C.12.9.1 requires a daily check-in of code.

Question: Will contractors be required to work exclusively on PTONet or will they be allowed remote access to the USPTO environment?  Can the government clarify any logistics related to this area?
	1) No, contractors will not be required to work exclusively on PTONET.
2) We will identify PTONET requirements at the Task Order Level.

	17
	C
	C.12.9.2
	“The contractor shall not store software or code on their local machines or, code, scripts, documentation and configuration files on computers, systems, network drives, external drives used to implement, unit test, test, debug systems.”

Question:  Can the contractor assume that the Government does not refer to local images of the artifacts (e.g. a checked out image) when referring to the storage restrictions?  If no, can the Government clarify the spirit or intent of this section?
	Yes, the Government does not refer to local images of the artifacts (e.g. a checked out image) when referring to the storage restrictions. All code, scripts, configuration, documentation etc. developed for USPTO systems need to be checked into and stored in our CM Library. 

	18
	C
	C.11
	Is the transition plan due at the contract level , or upon issuance of a task order regarding the transition of specific task order work?
	As stated in Section C11.1, the USPTO is asking for a transition at the task order level. The transition plan does not have to be submitted with the proposal. 

	19
	C
	C.11.1
	Assuming the transition is at the task order level, please clarify when the contractor will be informed as to the specific task orders for which a transition plan is to be prepared and the degree of interaction the contractor is allowed to have with the incumbent in preparing the transition plan.
	See response to question #18.

	20
	C
	C.12
	We assume the c.12 on page 13 is meant to be C.12.4.  Please confirm
	See amended RFP.

	21
	C
	C.12.10
	This section references a “Defect Management Plan”.  Please provide copies of this plan.
	Although referenced in the RFP, this document is a post award document and is not necessary for proposal preparation.  It will, however be posted on the USPTO website by the end of April.  That website is:   http://www.uspto.gov/about/vendor_info/current_acquisitions/sdi_ng/sdinghom.jsp


	22
	C
	C.12.2.7
	Please clarify the purpose of the parenthetical expression about Earned Value Management  included in this paragraph.
	See amended RFP.

	23
	C
	C.12.2.8 
	Does the request for weekly actuals in the last sentence of C.12.2.8 apply to all task orders (with and without EVMS)?
	It will be indicated in each individual task orders. 

	24
	C
	C.10.1
	Please make the documents and policies referenced in the final RFP available on the website cited in section C10.1 of the final RFP document (http://www.uspto.gov/about/vendor_info/current_acquisitions/sdi_ng/sdinghom.jsp)? 

Could the USPTO also provide a listing of the site’s planned contents?
	1) See response to Question #9.

2) By the end of April, all contents will be available.

	25
	C
	C.10.1
	“The information on SDLC is made available for electronic viewing via the World Wide Web Access in the SDIT Project Library under the “Solicitation Documents at the following link: (http://www.uspto.gov/about/vendor_info/current _acquisitions/sdi_ng/sdinghom.jsp).”  Upon review of the document library, it doesn’t appear the SDLC is contained at the WWW address listed above.  Can the government please provide a copy of the SDLC to the vendor community?    
	See response to Question #9.

	26
	C
	C.13.11  
	This section states that, “Testing shall be conducted on USPTO designated equipment, network lab environments.”

Not all testing, such as unit testing and integration testing can be done on USPTO designated equipment, network lab environments.  Please clarify that it is acceptance testing or something similar and what types of testing is within the scope of C.13.11?
	See amended Section C.13.11 of the RFP.


	Question #
	Section
	Sub-Section
	Questions
	Answers

	27
	F
	F.6
	"General software development guide": 

Will USPTO please clarify what it means by "general software development guide" as a deliverable?  Will USPTO also include this document in Section C?
	See amended RFP.

	28
	F
	F.13 (a)
	Will the Government consider accepting progress reports at the end of the Contractors accounting cycle rather than on a calendar month basis?  
	The calendar days only refers to the delivery date of the report. It does not refer to the period to be reported. 


	Question #
	Section
	Sub-Section
	Questions
	Answers

	29
	G
	G.10(e)
	For bidders who have an approved EVMS system, will the flow-down requirement be satisfied if its subcontractors’ EVMS data rolls-up into the vendor’s system?
	As stated in Section G.10; it is the prime contractor’s responsibility. 


	Question #
	Section
	Sub-Section
	Questions
	Answers

	30
	H
	H.1(g)
	Many vendors follow a federal business practice whereby the contractual interaction is between the Government Contracting Officer and a contracts representative of a vendor, and the program operations interaction is between the PM and the COTR. Is the USPTO looking to follow this practice regarding interaction on this contract?
	It will remain as stated in Section H.1 (g).

	31
	H
	H.1(j)
	Many vendors follow a federal business practice whereby the 75% funding notification is provided to the Government Contracting Officer by a contracts representative of a vendor, and the PM notifies the COTR. Would USPTO consider this communication as an addition to discussion with the PM so that program funding issues could be addressed more rapidly?
	It will remain as stated in Section H.1 (j).

	32
	H
	H.7(a)
	Does a vendor have the option to not bid on a TO, for example, if the vendor perceives a potential OCI?
	Yes, as a vendor, you have an option not to bid. However, as stated in H.7, contractors will be required to make a full disclosure of any actual, apparent, or potential organizational conflict of interest.

	33
	H
	H.13
	Withstanding section H.13 Order of Precedence, the invoice instructions in G.6 conflict with the example provided in attachment 11 in level of detail. We assume instructions in G6 are correct – please confirm. 
	Yes – The instructions in G.6 is correct.  See new Attachment 11.



	34
	H
	H.17
	Would the Government consider removing the notification and consent requirement if the Contractor has an approved Procurement System?  
	No.

	35
	H
	H.1 & L.6
	B:

Should the contractor submit a resume for the proposed Program Manager with the Technical Proposal?  If so, would it be included as an appendix and be excluded from the page limitation?
	See answer to question #72.


	Question #
	Section
	Sub-Section
	Questions
	Answers

	36
	I
	I and B.4.3
	I.1:

The Government has included FAR Clause 52.216-29 (Time-and-Materials/Labor-Hour Proposal Requirements – Non-Commercial Item Acquisition with Adequate Price Competition) which requires offerors to specify whether the fixed hourly labor rates applies to labor performed by the offeror, subcontractors and/or divisions, subsidiaries, or affiliates of the offeror under common control. Section B.4.3 of the RFP does not require this level of detail. Please clarify whether the Government intended to include this particular FAR Clause.
	The following is offered as a clarification or amendment to FAR §52.216-29 Time-and-Materials/Labor-Hour Proposal Requirements–Non-Commercial Item Acquisitions With Adequate Price competition. You are correct that §B.4.3 does not require the offeror to specify fixed hourly rates for all of the categories set forth in FAR §52.216-29 (offeror, subcontractor, divisions, subsidiaries, or affiliates of the offeror under a common control). This is to clarify that the fixed hourly rate for each labor category identified in Attachment 13 of the RFP (Labor Categories Format for Pricing Proposals) applies to labor performed by the offeror only (emphasis added). Separate or blended rates for other categories such as subcontractors and affiliates of the offeror are not required. However, please note that Attachment 13 will be amended to comport with §B.4.3 and the requirement that offerors provide both Government site rates and Contractor site rates. In both cases, however, the offeror need only provide the offeror’s rates.




	Question #
	Section
	Sub-Section
	Questions
	Answers

	37
	J
	Section J, Attachment 13
	Labor Categories:

How does USPTO intend to evaluate the qualifications of the bidder's Program Manager  if there is no labor category or description of the specific criteria USPTO desires in this individual, regardless if the position is billable or not billable directly to the contract via labor hours? This bidder respectfully requests that USPTO provide a job definition for the Program Manager for the SDI-NG.
	It is not the intention of the USPTO to evaluate the qualifications of the proposed program manager. See Section M.3 for evaluation factors. 

	38
	J
	Section J, Attachment 16
	Past Performance Reference Worksheet, Instructions, Line 15 Abstract: 

The document requests that bidders show how work performed by the organization is relevant to the USPTO's requirements as specified in C.3 .  This bidder believes the correct cite is C.1.3. Will USPTO please clarify.
	Thank you for your comment; see amended Attachment 16. 

	39
	J
	Section J, Attachment 16
	Past Performance Reference Worksheet: 

There is no space for customer address or email for any of the requested individuals on these forms. In the instructions USPTO asks for email addressess so they can be contacted.  Will USPTO please revise form accordingly?
	Offerors may add an attachment sheet with the requested information. 

	40
	J
	J.2 and J.3
	J.2 List of CDRL Attachments, The following attachments provide the CDRL forms and information that are required for the submission of proposals.  And                                        

J.3. List of Other Attachments,  The following attachments provide the other forms and information which are required for the submission of proposals.

The two lists seem to contain a combination of deliverables required for proposal submission (such as the labor rate table), items required when a task order is awarded, and possibly contract level deliverables.  Can USPTO clarify which items are which?
	Section amended. See section J.2

	41
	J
	J.3
	A. Attach. 13: 

Attachment 13 includes a fixed hourly labor rate per labor category.  Should the offeror include this Attachment for the Base Year and each Option Year in order to include rate escalation?  In addition, should the offeror assume that the rates identified in these tables only include contractor site rates or should the offeror include a column for government site rate?
	Q1 –Yes

Q2 – It should include on-site and off-site rates.  See amended Attachment 13

	42
	J
	Attachment J-13, Labor Categories
	Section B1 asks for both On-Site and Off-Site contractor rates. However, Attachment J-13 only has a single column for contractor rates. We request the Attachment be modified to include a column for both On-Site and Off-Site rates, in accordance with Section B.1 Pricing Tables.
	See answer to Question #41

	43
	J
	Attachment 11
	The sample format for detailed breakdown for billed task orders is cost plus award fee in nature (lists fringe, OH, G&A, base and award fee) but the stated contract type is labor hour. Will USPTO remove or revise the invoice back-up requirement?
	See answer to Question #33


	Question #
	Section
	Sub-Section
	Questions
	Answers

	44
	L
	L.6, Section H
	Submission Chart: 
The chart states that bidders should submit resumes, yet there is no discussion of which resumes are required, or where they should be placed in the required submissions. Please clarify.
	See answer to question #72.

	45
	L
	L.6
	Notes 1,2,3:

There is no mention of resumes to be submitted in any of the notes.  Will USPTO please clarify.
	See answer to question #72.

	46
	L
	L.6
	Teaming Plan / Subcontracting Plan:

Will USPTO please clarify which kind of plan it is requesting
	The Subcontracting Plan applies to large business; and the Teaming Plan applies to a small business. 

	47
	L
	L.9.2.1.1   SECTION 1 -  Experience Factor Proposal Instructions and M.3.2.1   Experience Factor
	L.9.2.1.1 item c. Specifically, the Government expects to see contract references that 1. Collectively demonstrate experience in the following areas:

...e. Software Maintenance,   

f. Contract Transition

M.3.2. 1.     Experience Factor

The evaluation of the Offeror’s experience will be a subjective assessment of the offeror’s ability to perform and demonstrated experience in performing in the following (5) areas:  ... e. Software Maintenance and Transition:

The factors in Section L and M of the respective sections do not align (as they did in the prior draft).  Does item e. in the section M reference refer to "contract transition" as expressed in the referenced Section L item f?   
	See amended section M.3.2.1

	48
	L
	L.9.2.1.1.d.6
	The primary function of the contract shall be providing SDI&T services similar to the ones described in section C.3 of this solicitation: 

Section C.3 is "SUPPORT HOURS OF OPERATION"”.  This bidder believes the correct reference section should be "C.1.3 Scope".  Please clarify.
	See answer to question #38.

	49
	L
	L.9.2.2.1     Price Proposal Instructions for All Offerors, item d and Section J, Attachment 13, Labor category instructions.
	The offeror shall provide a cost element breakdown by CLIN as identified in Section B.1 by year and a grand total rollup summary.

The offeror shall provide a cost element breakdown by CLIN as identified in Section B.1 by year and a grand total rollup summary.
	See answer to question #4.

	50
	L
	L.9.2.2.1
	Standard Form 33:

Will USPTO please provide the required SF 33 which was not released with the RFP?
	See answer to question #52.

	51
	L
	L.9.2.2.1
	Inclusion of Financial Statements: 

On page 79, the chart says to include Financial Statements.  On page 84, Financial Statements are missing from the required submission list. Please clarify if USPTO wishes all bidders to submit Financial Statements.  If so, how many years of same and must they be audited?
	See amended RFP, page 80.

	52
	L
	L.9.2.2.1
	The Price Proposal requires the submission of a Standard Form 33; however one was not provided with the RFP. Can the Government please provide the SF33?
	Please use the SF-33, which can be located at:

https://www.acquisition.gov/far/thml/formsstandard10.html

	53
	L
	L.9.2.2.1
	The Price Proposal requires the submission of a Teaming Plan; however the RFP does not provide guidance on what is to be included in the Teaming Plan. Please clarify what vendors should include.
	See amended sections: L.9.2.2.1 & L.9.2.5

	54
	L
	L.8 and L.9.2.3
	A:

We fully support the USPTO’s goal for utilization of small businesses in performance of any contract. For the SDI&T contract, the government indicates that a large business must have a subcontracting plan which establishes a goal of at least 30% of the contract value for small business participation. However, Section (d) of FAR 52.219-9 referenced in L.9.2.3 indicates inclusion of goals expressed in terms of total subcontracting dollars, not contract dollars. Please clarify whether the small business goal for this contract is 30% of subcontracted dollars.
	Not dollars, but 30% of the business. 

	55
	L
	L.6
	d.2:

Please clarify if Attachment 16 – Past Performance Reference Worksheet font and size meets Volume I requirement for “twelve (12) characters or pitch per linear inch or six (6) lines per vertical inch – or equivalent.” 

If not please provide the required font size to be used as was done for Volume II.
	A 12 point font must be used. 

	56
	L
	L.6 and L.9.2.2.1
	The Price Proposal content listed in L.6 General Instruction of Proposal Submission differs from L.9.2.2.1 Price Proposal Instructions for All Offerors. L.6 excludes Attachment J-13, Labor Hour Category Pricing. Whereas L.9.2.2.1 excludes Financial Statements. Please clarify the content and order for the Price Proposal.
	See amended RFP.

	57
	L
	L.9.2.1.1

and

M.3.2.1
	c.1.e & f and e:

Would the Government confirm that the Transition stated in M.3.2.1   Experience Factor e. Software Maintenance and Transition is referring to contract transition as stated in L.9.2.1.1. e. Software Maintenance and f. Contract Transition?
	See amended RFP.

	58
	L
	L.2.c.2
	This section lists content to be included on the first page of the proposal. Given the amount of information requested, can the offeror provide this information over multiple pages, if necessary?
	See answer to question #52

	59
	L
	L.6 Table (p 79)
	Volume I Section 1 reads “The entire Technical Proposal Section is limited to 50 pages (not including resumes).” This contradicts Note 2 (p 80) that states “The page count for volume I is limited to the sum of the pages in sections 1 (see note 1), section 2, and section 3.”

a. Please clarify the overall page count for the Technical Volume.

b. Are resumes for key personnel required for submission in the Technical Volume? If so, for whom, and where should they be placed in the Technical Volume?
	See amended section on page 79.

	60
	L
	L.6 Table (p 79-80)
	Based on the instructions included in the table for the layout of Volume II, there is no section identified for the inclusion of either Attachment J-13 or Section B.

a. Given the direction included in L.9.2.2.1 (p 84), should Attachment J-13 be included as section 2 of the Price Proposal?

b. Where should the offeror include Section B?
	A) Yes, attachment should be included.

B) Section B should be included in the price proposal.

	61
	L
	Section L.6 (p 80)
	The next-to-last paragraph of this subsection states “Offerors shall submit their proposals with responses provided in the same order and structure as shown in Sections L.9.2.1.1 through L.9.2.1.3.” Based on the structure of the RFP, it appears that this should read “L.9.2.1 through L.9.2.5.” Please clarify.
	See amended RFP.

	62
	L
	L.6 Table (p 80) and L.9.2.2.1 (p 84)
	The table for Volume II includes Financial Statements as a section to be included in the proposal. However, this is not included in the list provided in L.9.2.2.1. Please clarify whether Financial Statements should be included in the volume. If so, please provide what type of information should be included as part of the Financial Statements section of Volume II.
	See amended RFP, page 80. 

	63
	L
	L.6.d.2 (p 81)
	Please confirm that the font size for Volume I, listed as “twelve (12) characters or pitch per linear inch or six (6) lines per vertical inch,” is 10 point font and the font size for Volume II must be at least 12 point font.
	See answer to question #70

	64
	L
	L.9.2.2.1 (p 84)
	In section L.9.2.2.1.d, is the government requesting the contractor’s yearly cost per CLIN, made up of the contractor’s rates (with a further breakout of hours to be performed on customer site versus government site) and notional hours (as determined by the contractor) per labor category, equaling 450,000 notional hours? If yes, how will the government evaluate yearly costs for each contractor, who may provide estimates based on different assumptions given that the requirements in section C do not list specific project requirements to be performed or project milestone dates? We recommend that the government either provide hours per labor category (including work location) per year, or remove the section L.9.2.2.1.d requirement.
	See answers to Question #4 and #6.  


	65
	L
	L.9.2.3.c (p 85)
	The section states the offeror shall provide “recent past performance history (within 5 years) of any subcontract/teaming arrangements with small business concerns where the work was performed in areas identical or similar to those specified in Section C of this solicitation.” How many past performance references does the Government wish to see in response to this requirement?
	As stated in Section L.9.2.3 (c), you must list any that you have. 

	66
	L
	L.9.2.3.d (p 85)
	The section asks for “recent past history (the 5 latest contracts in excess of $500,000) of the small business utilization goal on those contracts and the actual percentage attained on those contracts.”

a. How should the contractor decide what contracts to include? Are these contracts to be aligned to Section C, as referenced in L.9.2.3.c?

b. How does the Government define “the latest 5 contracts”? Are these the 5 most recently awarded contracts? Please provide further clarification.
	Q1 No, the contracts requested in L.9.2.3.c might be different than those in L.9.2.3.d.

Q2 Yes, the 5 most recent by award date that exceeds $500K

	67
	L
	L.9.2.5 (p 85)
	The instructions included in L.9.2.5 for the Subcontracting Plan appear to be for the Teaming Plan, referenced in L.6 table (p 80) and L.9.2.2.1 (p 84). Please clarify the title of this section. 
	See amended section L.9.2.5

	68
	L
	Section M.3.3 (p 91) 
	Section M.3.3 states that price proposals will be evaluated solely by a price analysis to determine that Labor rates/prices are fair and reasonable. Can the Government confirm that the “grand total rollup summary” price will not be evaluated?
	See answers to Question #4 and #6.

	69
	L
	L.9.2.6.d
	Q&A number 212 implies that computers are not allowed during the orals presentations. L.9.2.6.d mentions ‘an overhead projector/screen.’ 

Question: Can the contractor provide a computer to present their orals presentation?  If not, what is the alternative?
	No, there is no other alternative. 

	70
	L
	L.6.d.2
	“Type for Volume I should be twelve (12) characters or pitch per linear inch or six (6) lines per inch.”

Question: The Government is requesting a 12-pitch typewriter typesize that translates to a monospace 10-point font such as Courier for Volume I.  Based on the amount of information requested for the past performance worksheets, will the Government accept a 9-point Times New Roman font for proposal submission section I.1.A (Reference Worksheets) and a 12-point Times New Roman font for proposal sections I.1.B and I.2? Please clarify the requirement in font size.
	No; 12-point font for all documents must be used.

	71
	L
	L.6.b,
L.9.2.2.1
	A signed SF33 is required for submission; however, the original SF33 has not been posted. 

Question: When will the Government provide the SF33?
	See answer to question #52

	72
	L
	L.6
	Where in the technical proposal is the resume of the key personnel to be provided?
	See amended RFP.

	73
	L
	L.9.2.1.1
	Please confirm that the only information to be submitted in the Technical Proposal is that in Subsections A and B and Section 2 and that there is no submission in the Experience tab expected.
	Yes – you are correct.

	74
	L
	L.9.2.2.1 (d)
	"The offeror shall provide a cost element breakdown by CLIN as identified in Section B.1 by year and a grand total rollup summary.” Please confirm if this is required, as other instructions in the solicitation only ask for Rates to be provided in Section B.
	See answers to Question #4 and #6.

	75
	L
	L.9.2.1.1.d.6
	Please verify that C.3 is correct.  We believe the intent may have been C.12.
	See amended RFP.

	76
	L
	L.9.2.2.1(d)
	The Government, making reference to table B.1, has asked to see a cost element breakdown by CLIN. Table B.1 indicates Total hours per year, per option, and columns for “Labor Category”, “Hourly Off-Site” and “Hourly On-Site” rates. There is no direct instruction for offerors to allocate hours amongst the given categories, or provide extended prices. 

Is the Government’s intent for vendors to A) Allocate hours against categories (totaling 450,000 hours in CLIN 0001, 25,000 hours in CLIN 0002A, etc), and provide extended prices that accumulate to a grand total evaluated price or B) to provide on-site and off-site ceiling rates for these categories only?
	See answers to Question #4 and #6. 

	77
	L
	L.6
	B: 

Given the limit of 50 pages for the technical proposal to include the Contract Termination Worksheets, can we format the worksheets to include more than one terminated contract per page?  As a large company, we would need to do so to provide full disclosure of all terminated contracts in the past 3 years.
	No – one per page. 

	78
	L
	L.6
	Proposal instruction table: 

There is a note in the first row of the table in the “Volume/Section Sub Section (Page Limit) that states, “The entire Technical Proposal Section is limited to 50 pages (not including resumes)”.  In reviewing Section L and Section M, there does not appear to be instructions for submission of resumes.  Please clarify proposal instructions in regards to key personnel, including resumes.   
	See amended RFP. 

	79
	L
	L.9.2.1.2
	Past Performance Factor Proposal Instructions:

If a firm has recently completed an Open Ratings past performance evaluation, can the firm simply order an additional copy of the report to be sent directly to the USPTO copy?
	If the recently completed past performance evaluation contains all 5 of the referenced contracts, then yes, they may just order a copy. 

	80
	L
	L.9.2.4
	ANSI 748 Compliant Earned Value Management (EVMS) Certification or Plan:

The section references Section J.2.E, Attachment 12 as the EVMS Certification. Upon review of Attachment 12, it appears the document is a report format for reporting EV Metrics.  Is there a specific format the government requires for the contractor to certify, at the time of proposal submission, that they have and use an ASNI 748 Compliant EVMS? If so, please provide the certification attachment.
	The USPTO needs a statement certifying that you have a compliant system. 

	81
	L
	L.13
	Questions and Responses Concerning this Solicitation:

It appears that emails sent to SDI&T@uspto.gov are being returned to sender with their error message, “email address cannot be found”. 
	This has been corrected, apologies for any inconvenience. See amended RFP.

	82
	L
	L.9.2.1.1 (d) (2)
	This section states that contract references may include “…Federal Government, agencies of State and local governments, and commercial customers.”  

 

USPTO promotes international collaboration, as evidenced by such initiatives such as the Patent Prosecution Highway, as well as the definition of “public” in Section H.9 of the RFP expanded to include the European Patent Office, Japanese Patent Office, as well as the World Intellectual Property organization.

 

Given this mission priority, will USPTO consider allowing the Offeror one Past Performance example from a government organization (the equivalent of federal, state/province, or local government) from outside the United States?   

 

Allowing this example provides an opportunity for Offerors to demonstrate success in working with foreign governments thus supporting the organizational goals of enabling international collaboration / integration in the future.
	No, the Government will not accept Past Performance Reference from outside of the United States. 

	83
	L
	L.9.2.1.1 (d) (4)
	This section states that   "... Shall have one (1) year or greater experience with the customer."

It is clear that the USPTOs intention is that offerors must have at least one year of experience with a given customer.  Our company has had multiple contracts with a specific client for a number of years.  However, one of the current projects with this client will be in its 6 month of performance at the time of proposal submission. 


Given the scenario described above, will the USPTO consider this specific client as valid contract reference for past performance?
	No – it must be at least year. 


	Question #
	Section
	Sub-Section
	Questions
	Answers

	84
	M
	M.3.b.2 Evaluation of Individual Proposals
	Q1:  Are the Experience Factor and the Past Experience Factor each more important that the Sample Tasks Factor, or are the Experience Factor and the Past Experience Factor combined more important than the Sample Tasks Factor?

Q2:  Can the Government provide evaluation criteria for the orals presentation?
	Q1.  Please re-read Sections: M.3.1.a1 
       & M.3.1.b2
Q2. Please re-read Section M.3.6
       

	
	
	
	
	


	Question #
	Section
	Sub-Section
	Questions
	Answers

	85
	Miscellaneous
	N/A
	Payments to contractors: 

What are the payment provisions for  this contract type? This bidder cannot locate any reference in any section of the RFP that states the kind or type of payment for contract services. Will USPTO please clarify or provide the relevant FAR Clauses in Section I (i.e FAR 61.301 et al, 16.500 et al, 16.601 et al, 52.232-7, 52.232-32).
	See amended Section I of the RFP.  Clause 52-232.7 Payments under Time-and-Materials and Labor-Hour Contracts was added.  52.232.25 Prompt Payment was already included.  I don’t understand your question regarding “FAR 61.301”; this is not a clause. 

	86
	Miscellaneous
	N/A
	When contractors are selected to present an oral presentation, Q&A #196 states the Government anticipates giving 30 days to prepare. However, Q&A 191 and 228 state that the time will be specified in a notification letter. 

Question: Please clarify that the Government indeed anticipates giving contractors 30 days to prepare their orals presentation from when the contractor receives a notification letter containing the specific presentation requirements and presentation date.
	The 30 days applies to the preparation of the proposal as stated in L.9.2.6D. The time and place of the oral presentation will be included in the notification letter to the Offerors who made the competitive range. 

	87
	Miscellaneous
	N/A
	Are offers to include the Program Manager’s resume in the proposal and if so where?
	See amended RFP.
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